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Emblem of the 71st Flying Training Wing
The emblem is symbolic of the wing and its mission, past, present, and future. The design contains the national colors of red, white, and blue and the Air Force colors of blue and yellow. Blue alludes to the sky, the primary theater of Air Force operations. Yellow refers to the sun and the excellence required of Air Force personnel. The stylized aircraft symbolize the pilot training mission and the aircraft flown by the Wing. The pointed arrowheads represent piercing dedication by unit personnel in future endeavors. The band of blue across the top of the design provides a canopy for the shield as the sky provides a canopy for the earth. Red and white across the lower part of the shield symbolize courage and stamina, required by unit personnel in both war and peace.
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Description: Gules, in fess a stylized aircraft palewise Argent between two piles issuant from base of the like, each bearing a stylized aircraft palewise Azure, a chief arched of the last, all within a diminished bordure Or. 
Emblem approved on 12 Sep 1994; replacing emblems approved 2 Jan 1973 (KE 51230) and 22 Apr 1963 (K 14058).
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   Since November 1941, Vance Air Force Base, Oklahoma has trained America’s military aviators to fly for the United States. 

Today, Vance is home to the U.S. Air Force’s only Joint Specialized Undergraduate Pilot Training program as well as instructing the Introduction to Fighter Fundamentals course. In all, the wing trains more than 410 Air Force, Navy, Marine Corps, and allied student pilots each year. 
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Everyday, we are preparing tomorrow’s Joint Air Warrior to Fly…Fight…and Win.
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A Brief History of Vance Air Force Base
From our very first pilot training class to our newest class, Vance Air Force Base has lived up to the original mission of training pilots to fly, fight, and win. Sixty-five years of Excellence!
Once home to bellowing herds of cattle making their way along the old Chisholm Trail,  Vance Air Force Base has a history of training military pilots that dates back to 1941. The official history of the base began one hot August day in 1941 when a group of Army engineers stood looking at a wheat field five miles south of Enid. The site had been winnowed from many other perspective locations after exhaustive surveys. One of the engineers turned to the group and said, “All right men. Let’s get busy. We’ve an airfield to build.”
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The airplane saw its first use as a major weapon system during World War I and the potential of airpower was a popular topic in magazines and journals in the 1920s and 1930s. Both Germany and Japan began using airpower in combat as early as 1936. By the time France fell to Hitler’s Luftwaffe in mid-1940, US national defense was a growing priority and President Franklin D. Roosevelt had an unprecedented $2.5 Billion request for funding the Army Air Corps in front of Congress. 

The 84-Group Expansion Plan cleared Congress in March 1941 and provided funding for 20 new flying fields including one near Enid, Oklahoma, to train more than 50,000 pilots a year. The original Enid Army Flying School developed from an idea, to a plan put into motion by Enid leaders, to actual construction, and the completion of construction and the official opening of the school. A few far-sighted members of the Enid Chamber of Commerce recognized the benefits of having a military installation in the community. Enid’s Mayor and the head of the Chamber of Commerce formed a committee to find and secure the necessary land for a new military installation. 

Negotiations between the War Department and the City of Enid resulted in a successful site visit by a team of six officers led by General G.C. Brandt in early May, 1941. Meanwhile, the city held a $300,000 bond issue to raise funding to provide electrical, telephone, water service as well as roads to the new base. It passed with an overwhelming majority. On 19 June, Senator Josh Lee told the Associated Press Enid would be the site of a basic military flying school. Contracts were set up with Oklahoma Natural Gas, the Oklahoma Gas and Electric Company, Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, and the Red Ball Bus Company to provide service between Enid and the new base. The federal government leased the land from the City of Enid and a $4.4 million construction project officially began on 16 August 1941 although much of the preliminary work had already been done. Only one contractor bid for the project, promising completion in 105 days. 

Soon, traffic on US Highway 81 came to a near standstill as trucks began delivering construction materials to a flat area of farmland just south of Enid as construction of what would become Vance Air Force Base began on July 12, 1941. It seemed the entire area was only a cloud of dust for the next several weeks as two shifts of workers graded and prepared the land. The construction company had actually begun work a month early. The War Department officially announced the project on August 16 at a cost of $4,034,583. 

The first officer to arrive was Army Air Corps Project Officer, Maj Henry W. Dorr. He supervised the construction and developed the basic pilot training base to train aviation cadets as pilots and commissioned officers in the Air Corps. Since it was impossible to work at the construction site, he set up his headquarters in Enid where it remained until late November 1941 when the Army officially established the installation as the US Army Air Corps Flying School Enid.
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On November 21, 1941 Lieutenant Colonel Albert B. Pitts took command of the base – still without an official name but generally referred to as the Air Corps Basic Flying School of Enid. A week later, more than 800 enlisted troops from Randolph Field in San Antonio arrived and set to work day and night to make the base ready for the first class of aviation cadets. 

Just nine days later, the Japanese attacked Pearl Harbor and World War II came to America. President Franklin D. Roosevelt received word of the attack and ordered U.S. military bases on alert. Major Dorr immediately posted sentries, but since ammunition was not yet available, they had to guard the airfield with empty rifles. Later that night, Dorr obtained 300 rounds of ammunition from the Enid Police Department and personally ensured each sentry had loaded his rifle.

Cadets from class 42-D arrived just days after the attack on Pearl Harbor and, based on their class yearbook, the construction was still well underway. “Our car convoy rolled through the gates at 9:20 a.m. on December 16, 1941, following arrows labeled ‘CADETS.’ They were great helps because the roads in those days were more myth than made. They were in the process of being scraped, plowed, scraped again, packed down’ and then to our amazement, plowed again.”
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Daily, more BT-15 Vultee trainer aircraft and some not so new BT-13s arrived. Down on the flightline, maintainers were working hard to set up maintenance facilities. Some of the older BT-13s were in poor condition and had to be almost completely rebuilt. Earnest Tennyson came north from Duncan Field, Texas to work as a welder. He found the job was more challenging
because supplies and spare parts were few and far between. Much of what they needed had to be fabricated from “bits and pieces out of the salvage yard.” 

Willis Hicks attended basic training here at Vance and then worked as an aircraft mechanic living in a tent until enough barracks were built. Even with the drive to build hangars, most of the time 50- and 100-hour maintenance had to be performed on the aircraft outside. Hicks once said they had to “tie the Vultees down. If it blew too hard, we’d almost have to tie ourselves down too.”

The cadets spent their first days cleaning mud and construction debris out of newly constructed barracks. Every day was something new they claimed. “One day we’d have hot water and no heat in the barracks; the next no hot water, and too much heat.” The loud pounding crack of rivet guns on the new water tower lulled the cadets to sleep and woke them up again in the morning as contractors worked around the clock to ready the base. Each day the cadets were amazed at the overnight growth of hangers and new roads tarred and paved with crushed rock. One aviation cadet described the process as “trying to make a first class hotel from third grade lumber with a razor blade and a mop.” Steady improvements continued over the years as new buildings were completed, muddy roads were graded and rolled, and sidewalks constructed. 

They were not alone. More enlisted troops had arrived from Randolph Field and were working night and day to prepare the base for its pilot training mission. When they weren’t working on the flightline, they could be found building sidewalks or cleaning. There was always more work than time.

The base also hired a handful of civilian employees. Emalee Wright was the first civilian hired and once commented that the first winter was “so cold that we had to wear heavy, fur-lined flying suits while we worked in our offices.” During her first few days, she used a couple of wooden boxes as a desk and chair.

As the war continued, the Army Air Forces expanded the field’s mission to include advanced pilot training in the TB-25 and TB-26 aircraft. This bombardment type two-engine aircraft flew with a five-man crew and a top speed of over 300 miles per hour. During the war years, 8,169 students in 32 classes graduated from the basic phase of training, and 826 pilots in five classes completed the advanced phase.
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Following World War II, the demand for pilots decreased and the federal government cut military funding. Many military installations were closed. The Enid Army Air Field drastically reduced in scope, retaining only the advanced pilot training mission from September 1945 to January 1947. Eventually the War Department determined the airfield was not needed and inactivated the field on 31 January 1947.
The Air Force, after its creation by the National Security Act of 1947, planned to build permanent bases on some of the temporary World War II sites. On 4 November 1947, the Committee for Retention of Enid Army Air Field met and unanimously voted to deed the base to the United States Air Force. The government responded to the city’s invitation by designating the base as Enid Air Force Base on 13 January 1948 and reopening the installation as a permanent facility on 26 August 1948. 
In keeping with the Air Force’s tradition of naming bases after deceased Air Force fliers, Enid Air Force Base became Vance Air Force Base on 9 July 1949. It was named for Lieutenant Colonel Leon Robert Vance, Jr., a native of Enid, who was posthumously awarded the Medal of Honor for gallantry in action over France on 5 June 1944. The Great Salt Plains Auxiliary Air Field was renamed Kegelman Auxiliary Air Field after Colonel Kegelman at the same time.
The Air Training Command organized the 3575th Pilot Training Wing (Advanced Multi-Engine) to serve as the host wing for the new base. The wing’s mission was to provide pilot training for advanced students in multi-engine aircraft. Mission aircraft included the TB-25 and the AT-6. Students flew the AT-6 in transition training before starting TB-25 training. In addition, the new wing trained aviation cadets to become commissioned officers. Thus, the new wing maintained its identity and original pilot training mission.

In 1953, with the end of fighting in Korea, Vance again faced budget cuts and a reduced mission. The school reduced the number of classes and extended the time needed for graduation. Air Training Command added another advanced course to Vance’s mission on 15 April 1953 by transferring the B-26 transition pilot training from Perrin AFB, Texas, to Vance. Upon completion of the six-week course in the 43 assigned B-26s, graduates were combat-ready night intruder pilots. At this time, Vance still conducted specialized training such as Basic Instructor School, Engine Conditioning Course for Pilots, Survival Swimming School, Clerk-Typist School, Organization Supply School, Airmen’s Management School, and a Passive Defense Course. These specialized training courses were phased out by the end of 1956.

A new program for pilot trainees started in December 1954—the single-phase TB-25 course. The first class (55-S) started in February 1955. Vance phased out the TB-26 aircraft, with Class 55-P being the last class to train in it. The last TB-26 aircraft departed the base on 11 October 1955. Afterward, the flight-training program at Vance included only 100 flying hours in the TB-25 aircraft. A few years later Vance phased out the TB‑25. 

The first T-33 “Trojan” arrived in June 1956, and by January 1958, the single-engine T-33 jet had completely replaced the TB-25. Along with the change in aircraft, another significant change took place in early 1956. Vance ended the training of aviation cadets, effective with the graduation of Class 56-I on 23 February 1956. The wing’s primary mission became training single-engine pilots.

In the mid-1950s, Vance began modernizing existing buildings and constructing a family housing area. The base entered into a contract on 11 April 1956 for permanent construction of three-story airman dormitories, and the Department of Defense approved a 230-unit family housing project in January 1957.
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Vance experienced two significant changes in 1960. Air Training Command announced that Vance would be the first Air Force base to test the concept of using a contractor to provide base support functions. Of the 47 firms interested, Serv-Air, Incorporated, of Raleigh, North Carolina, acquired the contract. On 1 October 1960, Serv-Air, 
Incorporated, began complete operation of all support activities.  

The second significant change came with an announcement regarding the closing of civilian contract primary schools. As a result, military basic pilot training bases converted to a consolidated pilot training program by March 1961. Vance implemented Undergraduate Pilot Training (UPT) on 13 March 1961 when Class 62-F entered preflight training as the first UPT class in the Air Force and the first to train in the T-37 “Tweet.” Pilot training for Class 62-F and subsequent classes consisted of preflight training, primary training in the T-37, and basic training in the T-33. Since all the training was accomplished at Vance, students now stayed in one place for their pilot training.

Soon after Vance had implemented UPT, a period of stability developed. This lasted until late 1963 when Vance experienced changes in the training program. First, the Northrop T-38 Talon aircraft replaced the T-33 aircraft. On 16 December 1963, the first class (Class 63-H) started to train in the T-38. Next, Vance tested the idea of training students in simulated instrument flying prior to contact flying. This brought an entirely new concept into military pilot training. The experiment was a success, and in November 1963, ATC adopted the entire program. The last change incorporated a non-jet aircraft, the T-41 Mescalero, into the training program. On 5 August 1965, the first class (67-A) entered the new T-41/T-37/T-38 aircraft program. Training in the T-41 continued for nearly eight years and ended on 26 July 1973.
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In 1972, the 3575th Pilot Training Wing inactivated and Air Training Command activated the 71st Flying Training Wing, which absorbed the assets of the 3575th to become the host wing at Vance AFB. Northrop Worldwide Aircraft Services, Incorporated, was awarded the support service contract.
 SHAPE  \* MERGEFORMAT 
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Although undergraduate pilot training remained essentially the same, Vance entered into a series of changes over the next few years. In 1977, Vance had the Accelerated Copilot Enrichment (ACE) Program fully operational. This program provided flying and decision-making opportunities to Strategic Air Command (SAC) copilots to prepare them to assume aircraft commander responsibilities. Vance saw its first female students enter into the UPT program in 1978 (Class 79-08). 

Almost a decade later, Vance began operated the Fixed-Wing Qualification Program training helicopter pilots for duty in fixed wing aircraft, continuing the program until 2007. 
The next major change occurred in March 1996 when United States Navy Commander John Hollyer assumed command of the 8th Flying Training Squadron beginning Joint Specialized Undergraduate Pilot Training.

After 18,724 Air Force, Air Force Reserve, Navy, Marine Corps, and international student pilots flew more than 2.1 million training sorties in 46 years of service, the T-37 “Tweet” was replaced with the Hawker/Beech T-6 “Texan II.”


In August 2007, the wing gained the 3d Fighter Training Squadron and the Introduction to Fighter Fundamentals training course.
Over the past sixty-five years, the base has continued a reputation of excellence, and has improved both quality of life and pilot training. Today’s students come from the Air Force, Navy, Marine Corps, and Allied countries. They may not have to drive on rutted, muddy roads or worry about having hot water, but they will face other challenges during their training. Before long, they’ll be old-timers too and the base will be welcoming another group of young students and doing what we do best, training America’s best.[image: image19.jpg]



Base Commanders

	Maj Henry W. Dorr

	20 Aug 41

	Lt Col Albert B. Pitts

	21 Nov 41

	Col Michael F. Davis

	02 Jan 42

	Col David W. Goddrich

	03 May 42

	Col Henry W. Dorr

	23 Jul 42

	Col Nicholas T. Perkins

	10 Apr 44

	Col Charles B. Harvin

	03 May 44

	Lt Col Jack H. Alston

	12 Jun 44

	Col George R. Geer

	22 Sep 44

	Col Henry R. Baxter

	06 Dec 44

	Lt Col John W. Williams

	26 Mar 45

	Col Bob Arnold

	05 Apr 45

	Col Charles E. Marion

	20 Aug 45

	Col Ivan M. Palmer

	16 Apr 46

	Col John F. Guillette

	08 Jun 46

	Col Charles E. Marion

	30 Jun 46

	Col Donald D. Fitzgerald

	18 Jul 46

	Col Samuel J. Gormly, Jr.

	04 Jan 47

	Col John G. Fowler

	03 Aug 48

	Col Tom W. Scott

	03 Oct 49

	Col Harold E. Kofahl

	14 Apr 51

	Col Russell L. Waldron

	27 Jul 51

	Col Chester P. Gilger

	01 Jan 53

	Col Dale D. Brannon

	18 Sep 59

	Col James W. Little

	25 Jun 63

	Lt Col Oliver M. Legg

	08 Sep 65

	Col Charles H. Christmas

	01 Jul 66

	Col William I. Truesdell

	01 Aug 69

	Lt Col Schuyler Bissell

	09 Sep 71

	Lt Col Robert J. Smith

	25 Jul 72

	Col Robert J. Lines

	02 Sep 72

	Col Anthony L. Guiliano, Jr.

	21 Jun 74

	Col Thomas J. Magner

	28 Jan 76

	Col Carl D. Wall, Jr.

	17 Aug 76

	Lt Col John W. Wolfe

	28 Mar 78

	Col William V. Finn

	17 Jul 78

	Col Richard A. Nagel, Jr.

	11 Jun 80

	Col Eddie C. Norrell

	26 Jun 81

	Col James A. Nugent

	21 Jun 82

	Lt Col Mary F. Felts

	16 Aug 84

	Lt Col Danny J. Parnell

	30 Nov 84

	Lt Col Mary F. Felts

	19 Jul 85

	Col P.D. Leonard, Jr.

	15 Mar 86

	Col Lloyd W. Newton

	15 Jul 88

	Col David R. Lloyd

	19 Apr 89

	Col Roger A. Alexander

	07 Aug 90*


*Effective 29 Oct 91, the wing commander also assumed the duties of the base commander under the “One Base, One Boss, One Wing,” concept.
Aircraft flown at Vance AFB

BT-13
1941-1946

T-33
1956-1964

BT-15
1943-1946

T-37
1961-2006

TB-25
1944-1958

T-38
1964-Present

AT-6
1948-1953

T-41
1965-1973

TB-26
1949-1955

T-1A
1994-Present

T-28
1950-1964

T-6 II
2005-Present

[image: image20.jpg]" HERE THEY ARE!—FIRST CADETS AT BASIC AIR SCHOOL—KEEP ‘EM FLYING!

READY, WILLING AND.ALMOST ABLE {0 pilot, Uncle Sam's
fleet Tightbrs are these aviation cadets at the basic ‘flying school
southwest of Enid.” Shown here are two flights as they snap to ai-

tention infront of their glistening white barracks. Flight A-1 is
commanded by Capt. J. B. Coleman with Avia

Cadet B. D. Rul-

dolph, Toledo, Ohio, as_flight section marcher, Flight B-1 l; ‘com.

manded by Lieut R. C. Twyman, with aviation Cadet S. R. Potts,
Beatrice, Neb., as flight section marcher. There are 75 of these cadets
who have been taking basic training for nearly a week and who still

qualified for

have nine more weeks ahead of them before they are
advanced training. (Army Air Corps Photo).






Lieutenant Colonel Leon Robert Vance
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The Air Force renamed Enid Air Force Base for hometown hero and Medal of Honor recipient Leon “Bob” Vance, Jr. on July 9,1949.

Leon Vance went to high school in his hometown of Enid, Oklahoma. After a year at Oklahoma State University, he attended the U.S. Military Academy, graduating in June 1939. He was in the Infantry briefly but took flying training at Tulsa, Okla., and Randolph and Kelly Fields, Texas, earning his wings in June 1940. 

He was assigned at Randolph as a flying instructor and promoted to first lieutenant in September 1940. In February 1941, he went to Goodfellow Field at San Angelo, Texas, as a squadron commander. In April 1942, he was promoted to captain and in July advanced to major. That December, he went to Strother Field, Kan., as Director of Flying 
for nine months. Colonel Vance next attended 
four-engine transition training at Fort Worth, Texas. 

In September 1943, he was promoted to lieutenant colonel and assigned to Wendover Field, Utah as Deputy Commander of the 489th Bomb Group, which he helped train and take to Europe in April 1944. On his second mission, while leading the bomb group against enemy coastal guns on  the eve of D-Day, Colonel Vance was severely wounded in action over Wimereaux, France, suffering a traumatic near-amputation of his right foot from enemy aircraft fire. 

“The Colonel was the bravest guy I ever saw.” –Copilot, 1Lt Earl Carper

The B-24 bomber’s 10-man crew called the mission a “milk run.” Even the appearance of a newcomer, Lt Col Leon Vance, the command pilot, does not completely dampen their spirits. Experienced bomber crews are often somewhat superstitious. Vance greets them early that morning. He shakes their hands. The crew relaxes under his all-business like demeanor. Lt. Bernard Bail, the radar navigator, later said of Vance, “…he was precisely the sort of leader one wants.” Their mission: lead a group of B-24 Liberators to bomb German defenses just inside the coast of France. It is the 5th of June, 1944.
The crew takes their stations and begins preflight. Upon getting airborne, the Liberator begins its slow circular ascent. The rest of the planes follow. At 10,000 feet, Vance’s crew begins putting on their oxygen masks. The aircraft’s engineer, TSgt Earl Hoppie, checks and rechecks the oxygen supply, gasoline valves, voltage regulators, and instruments. He listens to the loud and steady drone of the four engines. Hoppie has been at his job since two in the morning; doing everything, he can to make sure his plane is ready.

On the flight deck Vance is positioned directly behind and between the pilot and copilot, Capt Louis Mazure, and 1Lt Earl Carper. As command pilot, Vance is in charge of the entire formation. He flies in the lead ship, the Missouri Belle. This is Vance’s second combat mission.

The longest part of the mission was getting the group to form up. Now at an altitude of 23,600 feet, the thin air is a minus 28 degrees. The formation is almost ready. Lt Col Vance fires signal rockets to other planes joining the formation. The Navigator, John Kilgore, says in his Texas drawl, “We’re on our way.” They head for the coast of France.

Instead of hours, it takes only minutes to get to the target’s initial checkpoint. The pilot Mazure has no trouble keeping the bomber steady in the light flak. Segal, the bombardier, prepares to drop the bombs. The other planes follow the Missouri Belle’s lead. They will release their own bombs when they see the lead ship’s bombs fall. Now on target, Segal presses the bomb release, “Bombs away!” he announces.

Hoppie checks the bomb bay. He sees that the twelve 500-pound bombs are still in the rack. He announces drearily over the interphone, “Bombs away, hell. They didn’t release.”
Good leadership often calls for tough decisions. Lt Col. Vance immediately responds, “We’ll make a three-hundred-and-sixty and go over it again.” Vance ignores the grumbling he hears over the interphone. He knows as well as the crew, that the German 88 anti-aircraft guns will now be zeroed in on them. So much for the “milk-run.”

The formation swings out in an arc over the English Channel, and tries again. Glickman announces optimistically from the nose turret, “This will be easy. They’ve only got four guns and I’ve got them spotted.” His optimism is quickly forgotten. The flak is heavy, and the ship is buffeted by ugly black bursts.
Shrapnel from the flak slices though the thin skin of the fuselage, narrowly missing the waist gunners. However, the flak does not miss the fuel lines, or the number 1 engine. Vance orders Hoppie to shut down the fuel valves to the now smoking number 1 engine. Hoppie shuts the valves and tries to plug the leaking gasoline lines with rags. He would later say, “It was like standing in a shower room.” One spark and the ship could explode. 
Now over the target, Segal releases the bombs using the salvo release. They all fall earthward save for one, which hangs up in the bomb bay rack. The rest of the formation follows suit, dropping their loads and completing the mission. In the Missouri Belle, the bomb bay doors are left open to let the leaking gasoline escape. A blast of flak shatters the Plexiglas at the nose of the plane, and Segal calls over the interphone that he has been blinded.
Meanwhile, up on the flight deck; all hell has broken lose. A burst of flak explodes just under the left wing, smashing the upper turret to one side. A shrapnel fragment strikes Mazure just beneath his flak helmet. He slumps over, dead. Vance feels a sharp stab in his right foot. Seeing that the angling liberator is now in danger of stalling, Vance lunges forward to help the copilot with the controls, but he cannot make it to the pilot’s seat. He looks down to see that his right foot has been shot off, and hangs only by a tendon. It is wedged between the ship’s armor plate and the turret wreckage. Vance stretches forward to reach as much of the controls as he can. He feathers the remaining engines. The instruments and windows are coated with frozen vapor. Vance manages to open one of the windows about 4 inches. He can see the skyline and judge the liberator’s relative position. All but one of the engines go out. He uses only the elevators and ailerons to control the bomber towards the coast of England. 

Eighteen minutes later Vance can now see the coast of England and orders the rest of the crew to bail out. He knows there is still a live 500-pound bomb stuck in the bomb bay, but Vance believes that the blinded Segal is trapped in the ship, and too injured to jump out. To give him a chance, Vance stays with the plane and ditches it in the English Channel. Underwater now and pinned in the wreckage, Vance’s lungs are nearly bursting.
Somewhere in the bowels of the ship, an explosion blows Vance clear, and he is suddenly floating on top of the water. He is incredulous that he is still alive. He looks for Segal in the flotsam but cannot find him. Vance tries to climb on an oxygen bottle floating nearby, but keeps slipping off. He can feel himself getting weaker and weaker. An hour slips by. The last thing he remembers is a shape coming towards him through the haze. A British Sea-Air rescue boat pulls the unconscious Vance from the water. 

Vance learns in the hospital that the rest of the crew made it back, Segal among them. A true leader, Vance credits his crew during a broadcast BBC interview. He says, “It wasn’t any one thing. There were so many things that might have happened. If Skufca, for example, had failed to switch off his base radio before stepping out of the compartment, a single electric spark might have blown up the ship. If Hoppie had not done this—if Bail had not done that—if any one of the boys had not done their jobs—we might all have been gone. But every one of the boys kept their heads and did a hell of a good job.”
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Several weeks later, recovering from his wounds, Vance was flown by a C-54 transport aircraft back to the United States. It never arrived. On July 26, 1944, Vance was officially declared deceased, unrecovered in the North Atlantic. He was posthumously awarded the Medal of Honor. 
Colonel Charles Kegelman


General Eisenhower once praised him for “superior airmanship and extraordinary gallantry.” Sixty-five years ago, this Oklahoma native led the first American bombing mission over occupied Europe and became the first member of the American Forces in Europe to be decorated for gallantry in action against the enemy. 
Graduating from the University of Oklahoma, Charles “Sonny” Kegelman intended to go into medicine. Instead, he found himself attending pilot training at Randolph Field. He received his wings in 1936 and went on to assignments at Barksdale Field, Louisiana and Savannah, Georgia. He graduated from bomber pilot’s school in May 1942 and left immediately for an overseas assignment in England.

The 15th Bombardment Squadron (Light) had been rushed to England early in 1942 and began training with the Royal Air Force’s 226 Squadron. The squadron flew American made twin-engine Douglas A-20s, called Bostons by the British.  

The A-20 was designed as an attack plane to support ground troops and was never intended to be used for strategic bombing. Its small, 1,200 pound bomb load demanded very precise delivery, so bombing missions were flown at low levels, or haystack high, where ground fire tended to be lethal.

On what has become known as the Independence Day Mission, Kegelman and his crew (2Lt. Randall Dorton, TSgt. Robert Golay, and Sgt. Bennie Cunningham) and five other American bomber crews borrowed A-20s and joined six RAF crews for an attack on the Luftwaffe airfield at De Kooy, Holland. They would be the first Army Air Force unit to bomb targets in occupied Europe.

The mission was a daring daylight raid. Flying just above the waves on the morning of July 4, 1942, they approached the Dutch coastline and heavy German AAA fire. De Kooy airfield was located on the East side of a peninsula jutting out into the North Sea requiring the pilots to begin setting up their bombing run before they crossed the coast.  

Over the coast and flying through intense enemy fire, Kegelman’s ship was savaged by anti-aircraft fire. Just as he released his bombs, the ship took a direct hit on the right wing, shredding the engine and shearing off the propeller. Free of the weight of the bombs, the airplane surged upward and then shuddered and began to drop from the sky.

The right wing tip struck the ground and then the tail section hit, ripping open the fuselage as Kegelman fought for control. According to the post-mission report, his plane "bounced off the field at 275 mph, rose again and shot two flak towers out of action, then flew home on one engine.”

[image: image7.jpg]



That one surviving engine was on fire as Kegelman threaded his crippled bomber through coastal AAA and evaded swarming Luftwaffe fighters. The crew managed to put the fire out, keep the ship in the air over the cold North Sea waters, and return to their base. 

Following the successful raid, General Jimmy Doolittle recommended Kegelman for the first Distinguished Service Cross of the Eighth Air Force, which was presented, to him by General (later President of the United States) Dwight Eisenhower. The Distinguished Service Cross is the nation’s second highest combat decoration. The three members of Kegelman’s crew also received the DSC.

Promoted to Major, Kegelman went on to lead the 15th Bomb Squadron against Nazi targets for nine months. Ordered to Tunisia, he helped support the Africa Campaign. At the time, his squadron of A-20s and a P-38 fighter squadron were the only American Air Force group in Africa.

He came home in 1943 and helped train new pilots until September 1944 when he was sent to the South Pacific. On 10 March 1945, while leading a bombing run over Japanese-held Mindanao, Philippines, his wingman lost control. The two planes collided and plunged into the jungle. On 9 July 1949, the Air Force renamed the auxiliary field at Great Salt Plains Lake in honor of Colonel Charles C. Kegelman.
History of the 71st Flying Training Wing

Bestowed History
In the early 1950s, the wing received, by temporary bestowal, the history and honors of the 71st Reconnaissance Group. Up to that time, it was the groups which had histories stretching back to World War II (and a few even earlier than that). It was the groups that had earned campaign streamers and other decorations. Then in the 1950s, as part of a cost-cutting measure, the Air Force inactivated these groups. That left the wings, which were activated in the late 1940s, with no combat heritage. To remedy this problem, the Air Force chose to bestow upon like numbered wings the lineage and honors of the group. Such was the case with the 71st Wing. Bestowed upon it were the lineage and honors of the 71st Reconnaissance Group.

The war department constituted the 71st Observation Group on 21 August 1941 and activated it on 1 October 1941. The group flew antisubmarine patrols off the west coast from December 1941 to January 1943. In April 1943, the group was redesignated as the 71st Reconnaissance Group. The War Department again changed its name in May 1944 when it became the 71st Tactical Reconnaissance Group. And then in May 1945 it became the 71st Reconnaissance Group.

The group moved to New Guinea and Biak in 1943 and flew reconnaissance missions over New Guinea, New Britain, and the Admiralties in B-25, P-38,     P-39, L-4, L-5, and L-6 aircraft to provide target and damage-assessment photographs for air force units. It also bombed and strafed Japanese installation and shipping, supported Allied forces on New Guinea and Biak, flew courier missions, participated in rescue operations, and hauled passengers and cargo. The group moved to the Philippines in November 1944 and flew reconnaissance missions over Luzon to provide information for US forces on Japanese troops movements, gun positions, and supply routes. 
The 71st also supported ground forces on Luzon, photographed and bombed airfields in Formosa and China, and attacked enemy shipping off the Asiatic coast.  It then moved to Ie Shima in August 1945, where it attacked transportation targets on Kyushu and flew over southern Japan to locate prisoner of war camps, to assess bomb damage, and to obtain information on Japanese military movements. The group moved to Japan in October 1945 and inactivated on 1 February 1946. It activated in Japan on   28 February 1947, assigned to the Far East Air Forces. The Air Force assigned personnel to the 71st in November 1947 and equipped it with RB-17, RB-29, RF-51, RF-61 and RF-80 aircraft. In August 1948 the 71st underwent yet another redesignation, becoming the 71st Tactical Reconnaissance Group.  It was also at this point that the group was assigned to the newly created 71st Tactical Reconnaissance Wing.

Wing History

The 71st Flying Training Wing’s heritage began on 18 August 1948 when it was activated as the 71st Tactical Reconnaissance Wing, assigned to the 1st Air Division at Kadena Air Base, Okinawa.  The wing was non-operational from 25 August – 25 October 1948 when it was attached to the 32d Composite Wing.  The Air Force inactivated the wing on 25 October 1948.

On 4 November 1954, HQ USAF redesignated the wing as the 71st Strategic Reconnaissance Wing (Fighter).  Then, on 24 January 1955, the wing was activated, assigned to Fifteenth Air Force, and stationed at Larson AFB, Washington.  The wing performed strategic reconnaissance and also tested a technique for launching small RBF-84 aircraft from GRB-36 bombers to extend the range of photographic reconnaissance and fighter escort.  The testing ended in 1956, but the wing continued strategic reconnaissance until inactivated on 1 July 1957.

After a period of inactivation, the 71st Strategic Reconnaissance Wing was redesignated the 71st Surveillance Wing, Ballistic Missile Early Warning System and activated on 6 December 1961.  On 1 January 1962, it was organized and assigned to the 9th Aerospace Defense Division, Ent AFB, Colorado.  The wing operated and maintained the ballistic missile early warning system, including sites in Alaska, England, and Greenland.  Then on 1 January 1967, HQ USAF redesignated the wing as the 71st Missile Warning Wing.  In 1968 it moved to McGuire AFB, New Jersey.  There the wing operated the     sea-launched ballistic missile detection and warning system, supported the USAF space-track system, and monitored the over-the-horizon radar system until the wing inactivated on 30 April 1971.

Following a brief period of inactivation, HQ USAF redesignated the wing as the 71st Flying Training Wing on 14 April 1972.  It was assigned to Air Training Command and activated at Vance on 1 November 1972.  At the same time, Air Training Command also activated the 8th and 25th Flying Training Squadrons and assigned them to the wing.
When Air Training Command activated the 71st Flying Training Wing, the wing not only became the host unit at Vance, but it also absorbed the resources of the 3575th Pilot Training Wing, which ATC had discontinued at the same time.  The mission of the 71st became providing Undergraduate Pilot Training (UPT) for the US Air Force, Air National Guard, Air Force Reserve, and selected foreign allies, using T-37 and T-38 aircraft.  At the time of its activation at Vance, the 71st also provided preflight training.  Air Training Command transferred the T-41 preflight program to Hondo, Texas, in July 1973.


The wing soon received a secondary mission to provide T-37 aircraft proficiency training for copilots of the Strategic Air Command (SAC) through the Accelerated Copilot Enrichment (ACE) Program.  Northrop Worldwide Aircraft Services, Inc., the wing’s contractor, provided aircraft maintenance support for the program.  The program was fully functional at six forward operating locations by 1 October 1977.  Other bases were added over the years for a total of 11 locations, which made the ACE program at Vance the largest in ATC.  However, the program lost one location (Pease AFB, New Hampshire) due to base closure on 30 September 1990, leaving only ten locations: K.I. Sawyer AFB, Michigan; Loring AFB, Maine; Griffiss AFB, New York; Plattsburg AFB, New York; Grissom AFB, Indiana; Wurtsmith AFB, Michigan; Eaker AFB, Arkansas; Barksdale AFB, Louisiana; Robins AFB, Georgia; and Altus AFB, Oklahoma.

In June 1991, ATC and SAC officials signed a memorandum of agreement to realign operational control of the ACE program from ATC to SAC effective 1 July 1991.  However, ownership for the ACE aircraft as well as the maintenance responsibility for those aircraft remained with ATC. Therefore, Vance continued to provide aircraft maintenance to the same locations via local contract support. In 1992 two locations—Eaker AFB, Arkansas, and Wurtsmith AFB, Michigan—were released from the ACE program, due to base closures. That left only eight operating locations. Effective 1 January 1993, Air Training Command transferred the ownership of the aircraft supporting the ACE program to the eight bases with ACE detachments, although ATC wings continued to provide the maintenance.

Also in 1993, Air Combat Command and Air Mobility Command renamed the ACE program as the Companion Trainer Program (CTP).  Two more CTP locations—Castle AFB, California, and Fairchild AFB, Washington—came under Vance’s maintenance umbrella on 1 April 1993. Air Combat Command and Air Mobility Command discontinued the CTP in September 1994. However, in November 1994, Air Combat Command asked Air Education and Training Command to support it in its efforts to activate T-37 CTPs at Tinker AFB, Oklahoma, by 5 December; Mountain Home AFB, Idaho, by 19 December 1994; and Offutt AFB, Nebraska, by January 1995. By mid-January 1995, pilots from all three locations had picked up their T-37 Aircraft from Vance where they had been stored. Vance’s maintenance contractor once again provided the maintenance.

In February 1987, the 71st started fixed-wing qualification training. The program trained qualified Air Force helicopter pilots for duty in fixed-wing aircraft. Air Education and Training Command moved the program to Laughlin AFB, Texas, on 7 December 1994, in order to provide multi-place cockpit cabin experience in the T-1A during their upgrade training. The 47th Flying Training Wing at Laughlin began flying the T-1A aircraft more than a year earlier than Vance. The fixed-wing qualification program remained at Vance until 2007, when it returned to Laughlin AFB.
Throughout the early 1990s, the wing underwent several organizational changes. Headquarters Air Training Command directed a significant organizational change in its undergraduate pilot training wings in 1990. The 71st Flying Training Wing reorganized into five flying training squadrons, adding the 5th, 7th and 26th Flying Training Squadrons to the already existing operational squadrons, the 8th and 25th. Air Training Command activated the 7th and 26th Flying Training Squadrons on 19 January 1990 and the 5th Flying Training Squadron on 16 February 1990. Also on this date, the wing inactivated the 71st Student Squadron, and the 5th gained the responsibility for the ACE program and fixed-wing qualification training. The 7th and 8th squadrons trained students during the T-37 aircraft phase of undergraduate pilot training and the 25th and 26th during the T-38 aircraft phase.

The USAF Clinic at Vance underwent a change on 1 October 1990. The clinic became the 71st Flying Training Wing Clinic so it would be aligned more clearly with the wing that it supported. On the same day, the 2110th Communications Squadron was realigned. Under an Air Force Communications Command restructure, the operations and maintenance functions of the 2110th Communications Squadron transferred to the 71st Flying Training Wing for command and control responsibility. Several months later, on 1 April 1991, Air Training Command redesignated the 2110th Communications Squadron as the 71st Communications Squadron.

The Air Force Chief of Staff, Gen Merrill A. McPeak, announced in September 1991 a major change in the Air Force structure to meet future airpower needs involving “the most significant organizational changes made since we became a separate service in 1947.” The wide sweeping restructure merged Strategic Air Command, Tactical Air Command, and Military Airlift Command into two commands effective 1 Jun 1992. Air Combat Command consisted of the “shooters’—fighters, bombers, and intercontinental ballistic missiles, along with reconnaissance aircraft; command, control, communications, and intelligence platforms; and some tanker and airlift aircraft. Air Mobility Command included the bulk of airlift assets as well as a considerable portion of the tanker force.

As a result of the downsizing of the Air Force and the need for a corresponding reduction in pilot production, ATC directed in 1991, that “zero loading” commence.  Beginning with class 92-08, every other class had no students assigned to it.  

Another facet of the restructure occurred on 1 July 1993 when the Air Force directed the addition of two numbered air forces and the transfer of Air University, Maxwell AFB, Alabama, to the Air Training Command structure. Second Air Force directed ATC’s technical training and Nineteenth Air Force, to which the 71st was assigned, its flying training. At the same time, HQ USAF redesignated Air Training Command as Air Education and Training Command.

At the wing level, restructuring began on 15 December 1991 when the wing reorganized under the concept of “One Base, One Boss, One Wing,” in order to bring all the tools of the base under one commander. This restructure directed that Vance’s 71st Air Base Group be redesignated as the 71st Support Group, and the 71st Flying Training Wing Clinic became the 71st Medical Squadron. The reorganization order also directed the activation of the 71st Operations Group, the 71st Operations Support Squadron, and the 71st Logistics Squadron. The 71st Operations Support Squadron replaced the 5th Flying Training Squadron, which HQ ATC had inactivated on the same date.

After an organizational review of the flying training squadrons, ATC consolidated the 
T-37 squadrons and T-38 squadrons into one squadron per aircraft system at each UPT base. This action was a result of the drastic decrease in pilot production. Vance held ceremonies on 1 October 1992 to inactivate the 7th and 26th Flying Training Squadrons. The 8th and 25th Flying Training Squadrons remained as the T-37 and T-38 flying squadrons.

An Air Force-wide objective hospital restructuring resulted in the redesignation of the 71st Medical Squadron as the 71st Medical Group on 29 September 1994. The action also activated the 71st Medical Operations Squadron and the 71st Medical Support Squadron at Vance.

Air Education and Training Command directed the activation of the 26th Flying Training Squadron (Provisional) on 1 October 1994 as the wing’s T-1A squadron. Plans called for the provisional squadron to inactivate and the 26th Flying Training squadron to activate in June 1995. It would provide Phase III tanker-transport training for the specialized undergraduate training program beginning with Class 96-04 in September 1995. The wing received its first T-1A "Jayhawk” on 8 December 1994. It was used as a maintenance trainer. The 71st estimated it would receive three aircraft per month until it had its total complement of 41. On 1 June 1995, AETC inactivated the 26th (Provisional) and, instead, activated the 32d Flying Training Squadron, a unit with a history more attuned to the current mission.

In May 1995, AETC activated a number of comptroller units throughout the command. At Vance, the 71st Comptroller Flight stood up on 26 May. A decade later, the flight was redesignated at the 71st Comptroller Squadron.
In addition to these organizational changes, the command implemented a new merit assignment process for undergraduate pilot training students on 5 April 1991. This system allowed students to choose their assignments based on their ranking among class members approximately eight weeks prior to graduation. At the same time, although exclusive from the new assignment process, “banked” assignments came on the scene, necessitated by the decrease of available aircraft because of military cutbacks. Students selected their major weapons system aircraft, but they first had to serve an eighteen-month to three-year non-flying assignment. Although students did not receiver their flying assignment immediately upon graduation, it was “in the bank.”

In October 1992, as cockpit seats began to open, Air Training Command began requalifying banked pilots with a 10-week refresher course before assigning them to their chosen aircraft. The first class of banked pilots arrived at the 71st Flying Training Wing in August 1993. (The wing requalified three banked pilots diverted from Randolph AFB, Texas, in May-June 1993.)

The wing converted to the use of JP-8 jet fuel on 20 October 1994. This kerosene-based fuel was superior to the JP-4 naptha-based jet fuel because it was more environmentally benign and safer due to a higher flashpoint before ignition. The conversion of continental US-based aircraft completed the process the Defense Department had started in the United Kingdom in 1979.

In 1996, the Air Force increased pilot production because of shortages.  A downsizing of the total force plus a high operations tempo was squeezing Air Force resources.  Air Force surveys indicated that pilots were leaving the service in increasing numbers because of a high operations tempo, impact of frequent moving on families, and a ready market for their flying skills.

To augment increases in pilot training at Vance, the 5th Flying Training Flight began providing reservist instructor pilots to the flying squadrons on 1 April 1997, with Lt Col Greg Phillips commanding.

Also in April of 1997, AETC ended zero loaded classes.  Beginning with class 98-08, every class was once again filled with students.  As a result, with the graduation of 98-08, classes began graduating every 3 weeks instead of every 6.  By the year 2000, pilot production at Vance more than doubled from 1996 levels—165 pilots produced in fiscal year 1996 compared to 347 in fiscal year 2000. 

On 17 July 1998, the 5th Flying Training Flight became the 5th Flying Training Squadron. The 5th provided qualified instructor pilots to augment the other flying squadrons. By 2000, the 5th provided 110 qualified instructor pilots augmenting JSUPT program. The success of Vance’s augmentation program was considered the model for AETC.

To increase the span of control for students in the T-37 phase of training, the 33rd Flying Training Squadron was reactivated on 1 October of 1998. The wing once again had five flying training squadrons; the 5th FTS, 8th FTS, 25th FTS, 32nd FTS, and 33rd FTS.

In 1999, a first step to prepare for the Joint Primary Training System (JPATS) was taken at Vance.  A site survey team composed of 13 personnel from AETC, three personnel from the Aeronautical Systems Center at Wright-Patterson AFB, Ohio, and 11 personnel from Vance surveyed Vance’s infrastructure in preparation for JPATS, and the T-38 Avionics Upgrade Program.  The JPATS included a new aircraft, the T-6A “Texan II,” and its supporting systems.  Delivery to Vance was projected to begin in November of 2004.  The T-38 modification updated the avionics systems and the cockpit to provide the T-38 with a “glass cockpit.” (Video displays to replace many of the old style dials and instruments.)  Vance received the first modified T-38 (T-38C) in May 2003 and the final T-38A student sortie was flown on 10 March 2003.

In March 2004, the wing opened the new T-1 hangar. The new hanger allowed maintainers to completely maintain the T-1 fleet in one location. Previously, the T-1 shared hanger space with the T-38 and was towed from hanger to hanger for various maintenance tasks.
Vance welcomed the first T-6A on 18 March 2006. The Texan II was a two-seat primary trainer competitively procured and selected in June 1995 to meet the US Air Force and US Navy’s JPATS program. The program’s goal was to find a replacement for the Air Force’s T-37B and Navy’s T-34C aircraft. The aircraft featured a one-piece canopy for increased bird strike protection, an upgraded engine, single point refueling, and improved ejection seats in a stepped tandem seating cockpit. Minimal T-6 instructor pilot manning, extensive retraining requirements for maintenance personnel, and the impending higher daily increment requirements in the T-6 syllabus placed enormous challenges to the wing’s ability to provide a world-class training environment. Additionally, the wing began the process of retiring T-37B aircraft when the first two aircraft (59-0339 and 61-2915) departed for the Aerospace Maintenance and Regeneration Center (AMARC) at Davis-Monthan Air Force Base on 5 January. The final T-37 departed Vance during a ceremony on 27 October 2006 bring an end to 46-years of the Tweet flying over Enid and Northwest Oklahoma.

Emphasis continued on force protection issues with military construction of the perimeter expansion, boundary fencing, and Gott Road extension. Construction proceeded on 2 new roads and 54 new housing units with the first eight homes opening in May and broke ground on a new $14.9M Consolidated Logistics Complex and a new Post Office. Demobilization of Army National Guard military police and sustained worldwide AEF deployment of wing security forces personnel – at times more than 30 percent of assigned Security Forces’ military personnel were deployed in support of the Global War on Terrorism, one of the reasons the wing hired contract security forces in January 2005.
In May 2005, Vance came out on the Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) list to gain an additional squadron conducting the Introduction to Fighter Fundamentals (IFF) course with 12 AT-38C aircraft and an additional 13 T-6’s to beddown. Also recommended by the commission was construction of an Army National Guard and Reserve Training Center. Notably, the BRAC commission considered Vance Air Force Base to be the third greatest value to education and training for perspective pilots throughout the Department of Defense. In 1995, Vance rated dead last in military value of the thirteen different pilot training locations operational at the time. 
The standup of the 3d Fighter Training Squadron “Warbirds” in 2007 to operate the IFF training mission, the wing operated a total of six flying squadrons.


The 71st Flying Training Wing saw many changes down through the years; however, since 1972, its mission has remained basically the same—training the next generation of Joint Air Warriors to Fly…Fight…and Win!

Commanders of the 71st Flying Training Wing:
Col Edwin M. Day

18 Aug 48

None (not manned)

25 Aug 48

None (not manned)

24 Jan 55

Col Charles F. McKenna III
12 Feb 55

Col Charles A. Gayle

26 Mar 57

None (not manned)

06 Dec 61

Col Robert L. Harriger
ca 1962

Col Edwin Bishop, Jr.

ca 1965

Col Russell G. Ogan

15 Jul 68

Col William A. Larsen
01 Jul 69

Col Lincoln D. Faurer

31 Dec 70

Col John P. Rollston

01 Nov 72

Col Schuyler Bissell

24 Sep 73

Col George J. Kertesz

15 Jul 74

Col James P. Smothermon
10 Apr 75

Col Thomas J. Magner
17 Aug 76

Col David J. Pennington
01 Aug 78

Col Wilson C. Cooney
09 Apr 79

Col Giles D. Harlow

11 Jun 80

Col Donald A. Rigg

17 Mar 82

Col Ellwood P. Hinman III
02 Mar 84

Col William L. Thompson
22 May 86

Col Ronald G. Shamblin
16 Jun 87

Col Lloyed W. Newton
02 May 89

Col Donald F. Craigie

22 May 90

Col Samuel J. Bole

08 Aug 92

Col James N. Soligan

23 Feb 94

Col Edward R. Ellis

28 Jul 95

Col Daniel J. Mumaugh
21 Feb 97

Col Curtis M. Bedke

15 Oct 98

Col Douglas L. Raaberg
16 Mar 00

Col A. J. Stewart

19 Apr 02

Col Michael W. Callan
30 Aug 03

Col Bryan J. Benson

02 Feb 05
Col Richard A. Klumpp
15 Sep 06

Col Mark C. Nowland

11 Jul 08

Col Russell L. Mack

24 May 10
71st Group (Prior to being attached to the wing):

Unknown


01 Oct 41

Col William C. Sams

Feb 42

Col Henry C. Thompson
Oct 44

Maj Jowell C. Wise

12 Oct 45

1Lt Wilburn H. Ohle

21 Oct 45

Lt Col William L. Gray
03 Nov 45

Lt Col Ben K. Armstrong
23 Feb 48

Lt Col Donald Lang

25 Feb 48

Col William E. Basye

05 Jun 48

Lt Col Ben K. Armstrong
25 Mar 49
Lineage and Honors
Lineage

10 Aug 48: Established as 71st Tactical Reconnaissance Wing.

18 Aug 48: Activated.

25 Oct 48: Inactivated.

04 Nov 54 Redesignated as 71st Strategic Reconnaissance Wing (Fighter).

24 Jan 55: Activated.

01 Jul 57: Inactivated.

06 Dec 61: Redesignated as 71st Surveillance Wing (Ballistic Missile Early Warning System).

06 Dec 61: Activated.

01 Jan 62: Organized.

01 Jan 67: Redesignated as 71st Missile Warning Wing.

30 Apr 71: Inactivated.

14 Apr 72: Redesignated as 71st Flying Training Wing.

01 Nov 72: Activated.
Assignments:
1st Air Division


18 Aug 48 - 25 Oct 48 

(Attached to 32d Composite Wing)
24 Aug 48 - 25 Oct 48

Fifteenth Air Force


24 Jan 55 - 01 Jul 57

Air Defense Command

06 Dec 61

9th Aerospace Defense Division
01 Jan 62

Fourteenth Aerospace Force

01 Jul 68 - 30 Apr 71

Air Training Command

01 Nov 72

Nineteenth Air Force


01 Jul 93
Stations:
Kadena AB, Okinawa


18 Aug 48 - 25 Oct 48

Larson AFB, Washington

24 Jan 55 - 01 Jul 57

Ent AFB, Colorado


01 Jan 62 – 20 Jul 69

McGuire AFB, New Jersey

21 Jul 69 - 30 Apr 71

Vance AFB, Oklahoma

01 Nov 72 – Present
Aircraft Assigned:
RB-17

1948


T-37
1972 – 2006

RB-29

1948


T-38
1972 – Present

RF-84

1955-1957

T-1A
1994 – Present

RBF-84
1955-1956

T-6 II
2005 – Present

T-41
            1972-1973
Current Components of the 71st Flying Training Wing
71st Comptroller Squadron
26 May 95 

(redesignated from 71st Comptroller Flight on 21 June 2004)
71st Mission Support Group


15 Dec 91


71st Security Forces Squadron
01 Nov 72


71st Mission Support Squadron
01 Jul 89


71st Communications Squadron
01 Apr 91


71st Logistics Readiness Squadron
15 Dec 91

71st Operations Group


15 Dec 91

3d Fighter Training Squadron

26 Apr 07
5th Flying Training Squadron
 (Tenant Reserve Unit)

17 Jul 98


8th Flying Training Squadron

01 Nov 72


25th Flying Training Squadron
01 Nov 72


32d Flying Training Squadron
01 Jun 95


33d Flying Training Squadron
01 Oct 98


71st Operations Support Squadron
15 Dec 91

71st Medical Group



30 Sep 94


71st Medical Operations Squadron
30 Sep 94


71st Medical Support Squadron
30 Sep 94
Decorations:
World War II decorations earned by the 71st Group and temporarily bestowed on the 71st Wing

18 Campaign Streamers:


Antisubmarine, American Theater


Air Offensive, Japan


China Defensive


New Guinea


Bismarck Archipelago


Western Pacific


Leyte


Luzon


China Offensive

Philippine Presidential Unit Citation
Earned by the 71st Wing

The Air Force Outstanding Unit Award was authorized by Department of the Air Force General Order 1, Jan. 6, 1954. It is awarded by the Secretary of the Air Force to numbered units which have distinguished themselves by exceptionally meritorious service or outstanding achievement that clearly sets the unit above and apart from similar units, the services include; performance of exceptionally meritorious service, accomplishment of a specific outstanding achievement of national or international significance, combat operations against an armed enemy of the United States, or military operations involving conflict with or exposure to hostile actions by an opposing foreign force.
Awarded:  
01 Jan 62 - 15 Jul 64 (71 Surveillance Wing)





01 Jun 68 - 31 May 70 (71 Missile Warning Wing)





01 Jan 75 - 31 Dec 75 





01 Jan 77 - 30 Apr 78






01 May 82 - 30 Apr 84






01 Jul 84 - 30 Jun 86






01 Jul 86 - 30 Jun 88






01 Jul 96 - 30 Jun 97





01 Jul 04- 30 Jun 05
Chronology of major events at Vance AFB

08 Mar 41
Enid City officials contacted the War Department to offer land for a new flying training installation. The War Department advised Enid of its requirements. City officials obtained approximately 1,000 acres of some of the best farmland in Garfield County four miles south of Enid and met all other requirements.

19 Jun 41
Senator Josh Lee of Oklahoma announced that the War Department had selected Enid as a site for a basic military flying school.

12 Jul 41
Tankersley and Trapp, an Oklahoma City construction firm, broke ground to begin preliminary work on the new installation.

22 Jul 41
Federal Government and Enid City officials signed the original lease. The term was for one year at the rate of $1 a year with the option of annual renewal for 25 years.

29 Jul 41
The Army project officer, Maj Henry W. Dorr, arrived.

16 Aug 41
The War Department announced Tankersley and Trapp as the general contractors for the Enid installation. The announcement served as a General Work Order to proceed with construction. However, the contractor had already poured concrete foundations for 60 buildings, completed considerable work on the station hospital, and had two shifts working day and night on grading, draining, and removing dirt for the runways and aprons.

20 Aug 41
Major Henry W. Dorr assumed command of the flying school and set up his offices on the second floor of the old post office building in Enid.

20 Sep 41
The War Department activated Air Corps Basic Flying School, Enid, Oklahoma.

29 Oct 41
The Station Medical Department began operation.

18 Nov 41
The headquarters moved from the city to the airfield.

23 Nov 41
Workers completed the post headquarters building.

30 Nov 41
The 472d, 473d, 474th, and 475th Basic Flying Training Squadrons were activated to train aviation students.

16 Dec 41
The first students (Class 42-D) arrived from Sikeston, Missouri, with 64 cadets.

18 Dec 41
The Air Corps Basic Flying School started training students in the BT-13A trainer.

11 Feb 42
The Basic Flying School officially became Enid Army Flying School.

18 Apr 42 
The Tulsa Army Engineering Office concluded negotiations to lease four auxiliary fields in Oklahoma: Breckenridge, Waukomis, Carrier, and Drummond. The students used the auxiliary fields to practice day and night landing operations.

21 May 42
The field’s original construction plan was completed at a total cost of $4,500,524.

1943 – 1944
Eighteen Women’s Airforce Service Pilots (WASP) were assigned to the installation.

08 Jan 43
The War Department activated the 31st Flying Training Wing (Primary). It was a tenant unit at Enid, and its mission was to supervise and inspect the civilian contract schools in six states engaged in primary training for aviation cadets, liaison training for field artillery officers, liaison training for Army Air Forces enlisted men, and ferry pilot training for women.

07 May 43
The installation was renamed the Enid Army Air Field.

01 Jun 43
The housing shortage eased when a new 65-unit housing project was completed off base. Enlisted personnel in the three lower grades could rent the four-, five-, and six-room units for $12.50, $14.50, and $16.50 a month, respectively. Officers paid $29.00, $31.50, or $34.00.

Sep 43

To lower the elimination rate, the school developed a training concept that allowed weak students to progress at their own speed. The Bumble Bee Flight carried out the concept. Of the 127 students in the first six classes, 42.5 percent graduated, 20.5 percent were held over, 2.3 percent resigned, and 34.7 percent were eliminated.

Nov 43

Negotiations with the City of Enid yielded a fifth auxiliary field. The city turned over Woodring Field, its municipal airport, to Enid Army Air Field.

1944 – 1945
Enid Army Air Field used the TB-25 (trainer version of the B-25) for advanced training.

May 45
Army Air Forces Training Command inactivated the 31st Flying Training Wing (Primary).

22 Nov 46
The field’s advanced twin-engine flying training program ended. All military personnel, aircraft, and equipment were moved to Barksdale Field, Louisiana.

31 Jan 47
The War Department inactivated Enid Army Air Field.

01 Aug 48
The Air Force returned the Enid airfield to active status. (On 13 January 1948, the Air Force had designated all of its airfields as air force bases.) 
26 Aug 48
Air Training Command organized the 3575th Pilot Training Wing (Advanced Multi-Engine) at Enid AFB. The wing’s mission was to train aviation cadets to become commissioned officers and to graduate rated pilots from multi-engine aircraft using the TB-25 as its mission aircraft after a transition period of flying the AT-6.

09 Jul 49
The Air Force renamed the base Vance AFB in honor of World War II hero and Medal of Honor recipient, Lt Col Leon Robert Vance, Jr. During the same ceremony, officials renamed the auxiliary field at Great Salt Plains Lake as Kegelman, and base streets were renamed in remembrance of Oklahoma’s World War II dead.

12 Sep 49
The Central Instructor School for AT-6 instructors began. This school closed on 17 March 1950, having graduated a total of 68 instructors.

Apr 50

Air Training Command approved the “Indian Head” as the official insignia of the 3575th Pilot Training Wing.

09 Jul 50
The T-28 “Trojan” arrived; Vance was the first ATC installation to transition from the AT-6 to the T-28. Because hostilities in Korea drained Vance of many instructor pilots, factory representatives provided a special course in the fundamentals of the T-28 at Vance. Maintenance and operational personnel from Craig AFB, Alabama; Tyndall AFB, Florida; Williams AFB, Arizona; and Reese AFB, Texas, also received their training at Vance.

16 Dec 50
Class 50-G, the first class of students to train in the T-28 aircraft, graduated.

Sep 51

Mechanical problems with the T-28 resulted in students, beginning with Class 52-B, using the AT-6. Training in the AT-6 ended in 1953.

Dec 51

The Air Force’s decision to convert to an all-weather force created an increased demand for single-engine pilots to attend the all-weather interceptor schools. To meet this need, Air Training Command temporarily altered Vance’s flying training activities and initiated a 100-hour course in single-engine aircraft to provide the required pilots. The AT-6 was used for this training. The course ended in April 1952.

27 Jun 52
Air Training Command redesignated the 3575th Pilot Training Wing (Advanced Multi-Engine) as the 3575th Pilot Training Wing (Basic Multi-Engine). Mission aircraft for the 25-week pilot training consisted of the AT-6, T-28, and TB-25.

02 Aug 52
Vance’s first foreign students graduated with Class 52-E; 21 students from the Netherlands trained in the TB-25 multi-engine course. After graduation, they went to Luke AFB, Arizona, for more training.

02 Aug 52
Class 52-E graduated. Forty of the students in this class were withdrawn after their T-6 single-engine transition training and were transferred to a jet transition school for subsequent service in an all-weather interceptor unit with Air Defense Command. The other 56 students completed their training in the TB-25 100-hour course.

Dec 52

The base had 86 AT-6s, 36 T-28s, and 82 TB-25s. Also, there were 8 P-3 Curtis Wright Dehmel electronic trainers, 3 P-2 Curtis Wright Dehmel electronic trainers, and 5 C-8 Link trainers that the wing used in pilot training.

15 Apr 53
Air Training Command transferred B-26 transition pilot training (a six-week advanced training course) to Vance from Perrin AFB, Texas. Upon completion of the course, graduates were combat-ready night intruder pilots. At that time, the wing at Vance possessed 43 B-26s.

Jul 53

The AT-6 was phased out for use in pilot training at Vance AFB.

1954

Air Training Command eliminated the two-phase, 40-hour T-28 and 80-hour B-25 pilot training courses and replaced them with a one-phase, 100-hour B-25 course. The phase out of the T-28 aircraft at Vance began in December 1954. Also in 1954 the wing completed its last pre-cadet course. ATC transferred the program to Lackland AFB, Texas.

Dec 54

Because of overproduction, ATC temporarily suspended its advanced multi-engine training program.

1955

The phase-out of the B-26 aircraft began. Class 55-P was the last to train in the B-26 aircraft at Vance.

25 Mar 55
Once again a pre-aviation cadet training program was initiated. These students departed in June 1956, ending all pre-cadet training at Vance AFB.

10 Aug 55
The B-26 transition program terminated. During the program’s three years of operation, pilots and students accomplished over 20,000 landings and flew in excess of 37,000 hours, producing 1,856 graduates.

Aug 55

Because the Air Force was establishing 137 wings and needed military personnel for assignment to combat units, it initiated “Project Home Front.” Under this program, a number of military positions were converted to civilian. When the program ended in June 1956, Vance had 272 civilians.

11 Oct 55
The last TB-26 aircraft left Vance, leaving only the TB-25 as a training aircraft.

Dec 55

The wing had 109 B-25 aircraft, including 13 J models, 26 Ls, and 70 Ns.

1955 

The Secretary of the Air Force authorized the wing to accept certain non-Mutual Defense Assistance Program foreign student pilots sponsored by their government. The first group included one student from Saudi Arabia and three from Venezuela.

23 Feb 56
Vance became an all-officer training base when Class 56-I, the last class of aviation cadets, graduated. An all-jet pilot training program was in the planning stages. The B-25s would be replaced with T-33 aircraft.

11 Apr 56
Vance contracted for its first permanent facilities: three-story airman dormitories.

27 Jun 56
The first T-33 “T-Bird” arrived at Vance AFB. Five days later staff and instructor training began as part of a three-phase conversion plan. By 31 March 1958, Vance had replaced its TB-25s with 116 T-33 aircraft.

Jan 57

The Department of Defense approved a 230-unit Capehart family housing project, moving Vance one step closer to becoming a modern, permanent Air Force base.

05 Feb 57
The graduation of Class 56-15 phased out the basic pilot instructor training program at Vance, leaving only basic pilot training. From 1955 to 1957, the program produced 57 graduates.

01 Apr 57
Phase II of the conversion to an all-jet training base began with multi-engine instructor pilot upgrade training to qualify instructors in the T-33. The wing graduated 194 T-33 instructors.

16 Oct 57
Class 58-K, the wing’s first class of jet single-engine students, arrived for training.

15 Feb 58
Air Training Command redesignated the 3575th Pilot Training Wing (Basic Multi-Engine) as the 3575th Pilot Training Wing (Basic Single-Engine).

11 Mar 58
Class 58-I graduated, bringing to a close training operations in reciprocating engine aircraft. The wing completed its conversion from TB-25s to T-33s and began single-engine training on a full-time basis on 1 April 1958.

21 Jul 58 
Vance officials broke ground for a new Capehart family housing project. Walsh and Lewallen Construction Company received the contract with its bid of $3,741,142.

Jun 59

Aviation cadet training returned for Class 60-D and Class 60-DX All Jet, making it the first time since February 1956 that the wing awarded commissions along with wings.

Aug 59

The first occupants moved into on-base military family housing.

19 Jan 60
Air Training Command announced that Vance would begin contracting its support functions on a test basis, effective 1 October 1960. Vance awarded the first support contract to Serv-Air, Incorporated, on 21 July 1960. The test ended in June of 1962. At that time, Air Training Command recommended Vance be returned to a normal military operation, but HQ USAF disagreed. The cost savings were so great that HQ USAF directed Vance to continue contracting for base support.

16 Sep 60
In preparation for the new undergraduate pilot training (UPT) program, the wing received its first T-37.

05 Jan 61
ATC redesignated the 3575th Pilot Training Wing (Basic) as the 3575th Pilot Training Wing.

13 Mar 61
The wing implemented UPT with the arrival of Class 62-F. UPT consisted of preflight for 3 weeks, T-37 “Tweet” primary flight training for 26 weeks, and T-33 basic flight training for 26 weeks.

23 Jun 61
The graduation of Class 61-G signaled the end of US Air Force aviation cadets. Only commissioned officers could enter pilot training.

14 Sep 61
The graduation of Class 62-B ended basic pilot training at Vance.

15 Apr 63
Vance received its first T-38 “Talon” aircraft, the replacement for the T-33, and began training instructors and mechanics.

16 Dec 63
Class 64-H completed T-37 training and transitioned to T-38 training.

04 May 64
Captains Thomas Fausnacht, Class 64-G, and Lou Emmonds flew the wing’s last T-33 dual sortie.

07 May 64
Captain John C. Cappell, Jr., Class 64-G, flew the wing’s last T-33 solo sortie.

14 May 64
Vance completed its conversion from the T-33 to the T-38.
01 Jun 64
Captain Jerome S. Vidulich flew the wing’s last T-33 trainer to its new home at Amarillo AFB, Texas.

25 Jun 64
Vance graduated its first class of T-38 students (Class 64-H).

Nov 64

The wing completed testing the use of simulated instrument flying prior to contact flying. This was the first noteworthy deviation from accepted training practices. This policy was such a success that Air Training Command implemented it at all its UPT wings.

12 Apr 65
Air Training Command awarded the wing’s light plane (T-41) flight instruction contract to Bell Flying Service of Pensacola, Florida.

05 Aug 65
The wing’s Class 67-A began T-41 “Mescalero” training at Woodring Municipal Airport in Enid. Wing personnel christened the first T-41 “The City of Enid.”

05 Aug 65
A new 30-90-120 training program commenced—30 hours of instruction in the T-41 propeller-driven light aircraft, 90 hours in the T-37 aircraft, and 120 hours in the T-38 aircraft.

08 Sep 65
The wing reorganized under the dual deputy concept. This Air Staff-directed restructuring discontinued the 3575th Pilot Training Group and established the position of Deputy Commander for Operations. The directive also designated and organized the 3575th Air Base Group.

01 Feb 68
Major Merlyn H. Dethlefsen, 3575th Pilot Training Squadron instructor pilot and Vance Class 60-E graduate, received the Medal of Honor from President Lyndon B. Johnson at the White House. Major Dethlefsen earned the medal for his heroic actions in Vietnam on 10 March 1967.

01 Apr 68
The wing adopted the single-phase squadron pilot training concept, consolidating all T-37 training in the 3575th Pilot Training Squadron and all T-38 training in the 3576th.

01 Jul 72
Northrop Worldwide Aircraft Services, Incorporated, assumed the support contract.

01 Nov 72
In compliance with the Air Staff’s desire to preserve the lineage and honors of World War II combat units, ATC inactivated the 3575th Pilot Training Wing and activated the 71st Flying Training Wing in its place.
17 May 73
Air Training Command centralized its flight screening program at Hondo, Texas. Del Rio Flying Service won the contract to provide T-41 training.

26 Jul 73
T-41 “Mescalero” training ended at Vance AFB.

23 Sep 77
The wing took beneficial occupancy of the 24,440 square-foot academics building (Building 690). It cost $776,621.

01 Oct 77
The wing completed implementation of the Accelerated Copilot Enrichment (ACE) Program at its six forward operating locations. This program provided flying and decision-making opportunities to Strategic Air Command copilots in preparation for their assuming aircraft commander responsibilities.

14 Oct 77
The wing accepted the 21,000-square-foot dispensary/dental clinic (Building 810).

10 Jan 78
Contractors completed the Instrument Flight Simulator facility and installed the simulators.

15 Mar 78
The wing introduced the instrument flight simulators into T-37 training, beginning with Class 79-03.

28 Apr 78
The T-38 program began using instrument flight simulators, beginning with Class 79-01.

21 Sep 78
The first female UPT students to train at Vance entered undergraduate pilot training in Class 79-08. Two of the four entrants, Lt Eileen M. Collins and Lt Annette S. Chlapowski, graduated on 30 August 1979.

1979

Installation of the computer-generated imagery simulator began in January.

Aug 79

One of Vance’s first female graduates, Lt Eileen M. Collins, Class 79-08, returned as a T-38 instructor pilot.

01 Oct 80
Northrop’s Flight Simulator Department became responsible for the maintenance and console operations for the instrument flight simulators.

16 Jan 81
The Air Force accepted the new airfield lighting and instrument landing system.

15 Mar 82
Vance broke ground for a new commissary and base exchange.  Buildings 360 and 400 were removed to make way for the new construction.

12 Jul 82
Northrop Worldwide Aircraft Services, Incorporated, received the Vance support contract for another five years.

04 Feb 87
The Fixed-Wing qualification Program started at Vance. Class 86-06A (later called Class 88-01A) was the first class to enter the program.

26 Oct 87
Class 89-01 entered training under the new 52-week ATC Syllabus P-V4A-B. Classes 88-07 and 88-08 were the last classes to graduate under the 49-week Syllabus P-V4A-A.

01 Sep 88
The first three Aviation Leadership Program students graduated with Class 88-08. All three students were from El Salvador.

01 Apr 89
Quinton Corporation assumed responsibility for the instrument flight simulators under the Contractor Logistics Support Contract.

01 Jul 89
Air Training Command activated the 71st Mission Support Squadron under the air base group.

19 Jan 90
The wing reorganized from three to five flying training squadrons, activating the 7th Flying Training Squadron as a second T-37 unit and the 26th Flying Training Squadron as a second T-38 unit.

16 Feb 90
As part of the reorganization, the 71st Student Squadron inactivated and the 5th Flying Training Squadron activated.

30 Jul 90
Twenty-three astronaut candidates arrived at Vance for a day of ejection seat and parachute-related training. Among them was Maj Eileen M. Collins, one of the first two women to graduate from Vance’s UPT program.

Sep 90

Northrop Worldwide Aircraft Services, Incorporated, received a five-year contract, which included providing simulator instruction by July 1991. The wing removed the responsibility for running the clubs from the contract because of a new congressional ruling that prohibited the use of appropriated funds in the operation of base clubs.

01 Oct 90
Air Force Communications Command transferred the 2110th Communications Squadron to Air Training Command and the 71st Flying Training Wing.

01 Oct 90
Air Training Command directed the redesignation of the clinic as the 71st Flying Training Wing Clinic.

01 Apr 91 
The 2110th Communications Squadron was redesignated as the 71st Communications Squadron.

05 Apr 91
Air Training Command implemented the Merit Assignment System. The following month it began banking assignments. Because of the downsizing of the Air Force, there were fewer cockpits than there were pilots. Therefore, undergraduate pilot training graduates were offered their choice of aircraft, but only after they had served a non-flying assignment of not more than 36 months, with their flying assignment being “in the bank.”

01 Jul 91
Operational control of the Accelerated Copilot Enrichment (ACE) Program transferred from ATC to Strategic Air Command under an agreement between the two commands. Ownership of the aircraft and the responsibility for maintenance support of those aircraft remained with Air Training Command.

31 Jul 91
Air Weather Service inactivated Detachment 15, 24th Weather Squadron, at Vance. Weather personnel and equipment transferred to the operational control of the 5th Flying Training Squadron.

Oct 91

The wing commander established the Quality Improvement Office and appointed a quality officer.

13 Oct 91
Vance Celebrated its first 50 years.

15 Dec 91
The 71st Flying Training Wing reorganized as an Air Force objective wing. As part of the restructure, the 71st Air Base Group became the 71st Support Group, and the 71st Flying Training Wing Clinic was redesignated the 71st Medical Squadron. In addition, Air Training Command activated the 71st Operations Group, the 71st Logistics Squadron, and the 71st Operations Support Squadron. Furthermore, HQ ATC inactivated the 5th Flying Training Squadron.

01 Oct 92
The 71st Flying Training Wing went from four to two flying training squadrons, when ATC inactivated the 7th and 26th Flying Training Squadrons.

01 Jan 93
Air Training Command transferred ownership of the aircraft supporting the ACE program to the bases with ACE detachments, although ATC wings continued to provide the maintenance.

May 93
The wing began conducting the 10-week refresher course to requalify banked pilots prior to their proceeding to their first flying assignment.

01 Jul 93
HQ USAF assigned Air University, Maxwell AFB, Alabama, as a subordinate component of Air Training Command. At the same time, HQ USAF redesignated ATC as Air Education and Training Command (AETC). In addition, AETC activated Nineteenth Air Force to supervise all flying training in the command.

May 93
The wing began requalifying banked pilots.

10 Aug 93
Base officials broke ground for a $4.2 million, three-building vehicle operations and maintenance facility.

07 Dec 93
Fixed-wing qualification training moved to Laughlin AFB, Texas. HQ AETC based this decision on the need to provide multi-place cockpit cabin experience during this upgrade training. Laughlin’s 47th Flying Training Wing began flying the new T-1A aircraft more than a year earlier than Vance.

14 Dec 93
The Enid city commissioners acquired 155 acres of land adjacent to Vance AFB to permit expansion of the base. The capability to expand a base and its mission was one of the criteria considered by the Base Realignment and Closure Commission when recommending bases for closure.

Sep 94

Air Combat Command and Air Mobility Command discontinued the Companion Trainer Program, ending Vance’s maintenance responsibility. Air Mobility Command transferred its T-37s back to AETC and Vance. Air Combat Command retained its T-37s but contracted with AETC to store the aircraft at Vance.

29 Sep 94
An Air Force-wide reorganization to an objective hospital structure caused AETC to redesignate the 71st Medical Squadron as the 71st Medical Group and to activate and assign to it the 71st Medical Operations Squadron and 71st Medical Support Squadron.

01 Oct 94
In preparation for the implementation of specialized undergraduate pilot training (SUPT) at Vance, AETC activated the 26th Flying Training Squadron (Provisional) as the 71st Flying Training Wing’s T-1A squadron. Plans called for the inactivation of the provisional squadron and activation of the 26th Flying Training Squadron in June 1995 to provide training for the tanker/transport track of SUPT.

20 Oct 94
The wing’s aircraft converted to the use of JP-8 jet fuel. This kerosene-based fuel was superior to the naptha-based JP-4 jet fuel because it was more environmentally benign and safer due to the higher flashpoint before ignition.

Dec 94

Air Combat Command restored its Companion Trainer Program at three locations, retrieved 12 of its stored T-37s, and requested that Vance maintain the CTP aircraft at Mountain Home AFB, Idaho; Offutt AFB Nebraska; and Tinker AFB, Oklahoma.

08 Dec 94
The wing’s first T-1A “Jayhawk” landed at Vance. The contract called for Beech Aircraft to deliver three T-1As per month until the wing received its authorized 41 aircraft.

26 May 95
The 71st Comptroller Flight activated and Capt Vernett Smith assumed command. 

01 Jun 95
The 32d Flying Training Squadron activated instead of the 26th. The squadron commander asked for the 32d because of its transport history during World War II, and the Air Staff concurred.

07 Jun 95
Four members of the Base Realignment and Closure Commission conducted a site survey at Vance AFB. They were greeted by approximately 12,500 are residents who had gathered to show their support for Vance.

22 Jun 95
Instead of Vance, the base Realignment and Closure Commission voted to close Reese AFB, Texas.

28 Mar 96
United States Navy commander John B. Hollyer became the first naval officer to command the 8th Flying Training Squadron.  Commander Hollyer assumed command of the 8th from Lt Col Gary E. Barrentine as the squadron’s chief officer.

05 May 96
The final Banked Pilot Requalification Class 96-07 graduated two pilots, ending the program at Vance.

22 Nov 96
The Vance Top Dollar team won the Air Force Top Dollar competition during a week of events at Camp Bullis, Texas.

05 Sep 97
Two dozen T-38 and T-1 instructor pilots and instructor pilot trainees from the 12th Flying Wing, Randolph, were transferred to Vance.

01 Apr 97
A reserve unit, the 5th Flying Training Flight, was designated an associate unit at Vance. Their assigned mission: to augment the Undergraduate Flying Training Program with instructor pilots. 

06 Jun 97
For anticipated growth in Vance’s training mission, Enid Mayor Mike Cooper presented the 71st Flying Training Wing Commander, Col Daniel J. Mumaugh, with the deed to 158 acres of land. Most of the land is located just north of the base, with a few tracts to the east.

17 Jul 98
The 5th Flying Training Flight was designated the 5th Flying Training Squadron, with Lt Col Greg Phillips commanding.

30 Apr 98
Vance modified phase I training. The change was in preparation for the new Joint Primary Aircraft Training System. The most significant change to the training was the addition of swimming training and a swim survival test.

01 Oct 98
Lt Col Richard Warner took command of the 33rd Flying Training Squadron, which was reactivated on this day. The wing once again had five Flying Training Squadrons: 5th FTS, 8th FTS, 25th FTS, 32d FTS, and the 33d FTS.

25 Jan 99
The Vance club held a grand reopening event to celebrate the opening of the collocated club with completion of the new enlisted lounge.

03 May 99
As many as 40 tornadoes touched down over northern and central Oklahoma during the night.  In central Oklahoma, one tornado left a path of destruction 19 miles long, and up to half a mile wide.  The following day, Vance set up relief operations to assist local communities.

18 Jun 99
A site-survey team, composed of personnel from AETC and Vance, completed their survey of Vance’s facilities to prepare for the Joint Primary Training System (JPATS—the T-6A “Texan II” aircraft), and T-38 Avionics Upgrade Program.

30 Dec 99
After months of final preparations, Vance prepared to battle the “millennium bug,” during the year 2000 (Y2K) rollover.  Concerns of Internet vulnerabilities were paramount. As the clock ticked past midnight the communications branch chief declared Y2K a “non-event.”

21 Jul 00
An AETC official announced that DynCorp would be awarded the base support services contract for Vance.  Northrop had held the contract since 1972.  Northrop immediately filed a protest.

01 Nov 00
The General Accounting Office (GAO) disagreed with Northrop Grumman’s protest, and upheld the decision for DynCorp to assume the base services support contract for Vance. The transition period to the new contractor began on 1 January 01. DynCorp took over the new contract on 1 February 01.

11 Sep 01
Vance reacted to terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center Towers and the Pentagon.

30 Jan 02
Team Vance reacted as the worst ice storm in 100 years slammed into the area, leaving the base and surrounding area without electricity for four days.

01 Oct 02
Under an Air Force-wide combat wing restructure, the 71st Support Group was redesignated the 71st Mission Support Group, and the 71st Logistics Squadron became the 71st Logistics Readiness Squadron.

16 May 03
Vance received its first modified T-38 (T-38C), incorporating improved avionics and a modernized “glass” cockpit.

10 March 2004: The final T-38A student sortie is flown by Lt Rogers and Capt Allen from Class 04-06

18 November 2004: USMC 2Lt Sara Faibisoff selected as the first track selected V-22 “Osprey” pilot.
18 March 2005: The wing welcomed the first T-6A “Texan II” to Vance

8 September 2006: T-37 final student sortie flown by Lt Rabena and 1Lt Friend

27 October 2006: Captain Brian Yargan and Major Russ Morton symbolized the end of an era as they flew over Vance and departed with the last T-37 “Tweet” ending 46 years of operation at Vance AFB.
26 April 2007: The 3d Flying Training Squadron was transferred from Moody AFB and activated at the 3d Fighter Training Squadron at Vance under the command of Lt Col Thomas Tyson. 

20 July 2007: The wing hosted the 2007 AETC Faipapalooza conference with more than 120 current and former First Assignment Instructor Pilots attending.
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A typical Oklahoma sunset as a Joint Undergraduate Pilot Training (JSUPT) student and instructor pilot approach the airfield in a T-6 “Texan II.”�Photo by Ms. Terry Crawford.





History recorded as of 10 December 2010.





Sixty-nine years of Excellence





A Vance TB-26 practices precision low-level bombing. In 1948. �Photo John Campbell.
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Did you know: Cadet Ralph Baker reported to Enid Army Air School in 1942 for training with Class 43-B. The surprised 1936 Enid High School graduate had farmed the acreage where his pilot training was to take place. While he was in basic infantry training, his parents Ralph and Violette Baker sold their 320-acre farm for $60,000 to the Army to increase the size of the airfield. After earning his wings, Baker flew in the China-Burma-India Theater including 70 missions “over the hump.”





Baker’s daughter, Connie Jo Collins is a Computer Services Corporation employee on base outfitting all the students now attending pilot training at Vance with individual equipment.





Through the 1950s, the base retained its temporary appearance. The majority of buildings were simple WWII wood construction.








Northrop went on to hold the contract for the next 28 years. In 1993, Northrop merged with Grumman and became Northrop-Grumman Technical Services, Incorporated. In July of 2000, DynCorp Technical Services won the aircraft maintenance and base operating support services contract. On 1 February 2001, DynCorp began providing support services for Vance. DynCorp, now known as Computer Sciences Corporation Inc. provide services to the present day.











� 





One of the first female pilots allowed into the UPT program, Lieutenant Eileen Collins graduated with Class 79-08, returning as a T-38A First Assignment Instructor Pilot. 





Colonel Collins went on to help rescue medical students from Grenada in 1983, fly at the USAF Test Pilot School, and logged more than 537hours in space during three separate missions, STS-63, STS-84, and as the Mission Commander for STS-93 – NASA’s Return to Manned Flight mission.





Lt Col Leon R. Vance





Colonel Charles "Sonny" Kegelman








1







A BRIEF HISTORY 

OF 

VANCE AIR FORCE BASE  AND THE 71 FLYING 

TRAINING WING





image1.jpeg














_1354003150.doc
[image: image1.png]






